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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TREHREREEBTRR DA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31st
March, 2015 (the “Year”).

Given the slowing growth of the Chinese economy and the
overall slackening landscapes in luxury sector, turnover for
the year ended 31st March, 2015 declined significantly by
11% to HK$3,109 million (2014: HK$3,477 million). Gross
profit dropped by 15% to HK$519 million (2014: HK$612
million) whilst gross profit margin dropped to 16.7% from
17.6% last year. Net profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$5 million, representing a decrease of
78% from the previous corresponding year (2014: HK$21
million). The significant decline in both the Group’s revenue
and net profit was mainly attributable to: (1) the discerning
and changing preferences and attitudes for luxury goods
and (2) the rising fierce competition amongst luxury retailers.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
0.25 HK cents per share for the year ended 31st March,
2015 (2014: 0.25 HK cents). The final dividend together with
the special dividend of 0.5 HK cents per share (2014: 0.75
HK cents), represented a dividend payout of approximately
95% for the year ended 31st March, 2015 (2014: 28%).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEREEEARR DM

Business Review

As at 31st March, 2015, the Group operates 87 retail and
wholesale points (including associate retail stores) in the
Greater China region. Breakdown by geographic region is as
follows:

Hong Kong BB
Macau BT
China s
Taiwan =)
Total 5t

China’s economic growth softened in 2014 amid the
structural transformation of the economy. The country’s
real gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth slipped below
7.5% in 2014, missing the GDP growth target for the first
time since 1998 and downshifting to the slowest rate of
growth since 1990. In spite of such, according to Bain &
Company, China has experienced the first downturn in
luxury retail market after the strong growth rates occurring
in previous years. Apart from the overall flagging economic
growth, the chilling effects on the luxury market were mainly
due in part to the consumer’s changing preferences against
luxury items and the growing tendency of online purchasing
and shopping aboard. Meanwhile, the controlling policy
for the booming influx of Chinese tourists from Hong Kong
Government and the rising social tensions and conflicts
between Hong Kong and mainland China have also further
dragged Hong Kong’s sluggish luxury sector. According to
Hong Kong’s Census and Statistics Department, the value
of sales of jewelry, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts
in Hong Kong recorded a year-on-year 13.7% decrease in
2014, and a 15.9% decrease in the first two months of 2015
compared with the same period last year. Oriental Watch, as
one of the major luxury watch distributors in Greater China,
was inevitably affected by the sluggish market sentiment.
Yet, acknowledging the on-going economic instability and
the above unfavourable factors, Oriental Watch has been
committed to strengthen its cost control management,
reinforce its internal assessment and improve its stores
efficiency during the year, in order to maintain a stable
workforce and financial position during times of uncertainty.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRGEREREHRR DN

Notwithstanding the descending customer traffic and the
diminishing consumption in the overall retail market, the dip
in retail sales growth has yet to forced property owners to
slim down the shop rental during the year, and thus the high
rental cost has further posed major challenges to retailers.
The Group’s aggregate rental costs (excluding related
property management fees) for the year ended 31st March,
2015 slightly decreased by approximately 0.4% to 224
million, accounting 39% of the Group’s overall operating
expenses. To minimize the cost burden and optimize the
operating efficiency, the Group has been concentrating on
stores’ performance assessments to create best practices
in managing rental expenditure. By closing down non-
performing retail stores on their lease expiry, resources
could be better allocated in fine-tuning our existing retail
network. Furthermore, considering the fragile economic
outlook, the pace of rent increase in Hong Kong has slowed
down in the last three months. This positive sign suggests a
perfect juncture for the Group to negotiate for a reasonable
rental rate. We believe that with such quick reaction
toward the stringent cost control measures, the Group can
effectively lower its margin squeeze pressure, as well as
improve its store profitability and productivity.

A stringent inventory management always plays a
momentous and decisive role in the Group’s cash flow level.
During the year, the Group underwent proactive adjustment
and optimization to the inventory mix. Following with the
effective inventory management policy from last year, such
as purchasing stocks only when the existing inventory
depleted to a pre-agreed level, cautiously monitoring the
replenishment rate of high-ticket items, and encouraging
front-line staffs in pushing sales through selective and
strategic discounting policies. As at 31st March, 2015, the
Group’s overall inventory level slightly decreased. In the
coming year, the Group will continue remain disciplined in
controlling inventory levels to further maintain the Group’s
cash position for sustainable business development in the
future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEREEEARR DM

In addition, the Group’s balance sheet was further
strengthened by the disposal of asset during the Year, with
the gain on disposal on an office premises amounting to
HK$17 million. To reveal the potential value of the Group’s
assets, Oriental Watch is vigilantly assessing the market
and may consider divesting its shops assets at favourable
prices.

According to the latest statistics from the Federation of
the Swiss Watch Industry, Hong Kong and China’s overall
Swiss watch exports value registered a year-on-year 13.8%
decline and 2.4% decline in March 2015 respectively, which
implied a difficult period ahead. Looking into the future,
the Group expects that the trend of luxury retail market,
especially in the watch industry, is likely to continue to
deteriorate on back of the changing consumption preference
towards experiential luxury items, the more “conservative”
consumption pattern on luxury goods for local customers,
and the growing tendency in online purchase and shopping
aboard. Against the backdrop of a relatively weak
macroeconomic conditions and erratic retail environment,
together with our extensive experiences and knowledge
of the watch industry, we will make our best endeavours
to maintain the stability of our business development and
strengthen our core competitiveness. We will strive to adopt
continuous prudential measure with our stringent inventory
management and resources optimisation strategies, as
well as to elevate the productivity of existing stores and
improve our financial strength. We promise Oriental Watch
will persistently seize every opportunity to ensure the best
interests of shareholders.

On behalf of the Group, we thank our customers, suppliers,

staff and shareholders for their contribution, loyalty and
continued support.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March, 2015, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$2,212 million, compared with HK$2,218 million as
at 31st March, 2014. The Group had net current assets
of HK$1,892 million, including bank and cash balances
of HK$344 million as at 31st March, 2015 compared
with balances of HK$1,908 million and HK$425 million
respectively as at 31st March, 2014. At 31st March, 2015,
bank loans of HK$338 million (31st March, 2014: HK$491
million). At 31st March, 2015, the gearing ratio (defined as
total bank borrowing on total equity) was 0.15 (31st March,
2014: 0.22).

Management considers that financial position of the Group
is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking facilities.
The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st March, 2015, our Group employed approximately
730 employees all over Hong Kong, Macau, China and
Taiwan, of which approximately 60% were located in
Mainland China. The total manpower is lower than previous
year.

The Group’s compensation package, includes basic salary,
commission, annual bonus, medical insurance, and other
common benefits. It is structured by reference to the
marketplace and individual merits, and is reviewed on an
annual basis based on the Group’s policy’s performance
system and objective specification performance appraisal.

We believe every customer does have high expectations on
the services they obtained while shopping for luxury goods.
Thus, we must always try to provide services beyond their
expectations. As such, significant resources have been
allocated to the Staff Training and Development. Since
January 2009, we have commissioned an independent
consulting firm to conduct a continuous “Mystery Shoppers
Programme (MSP)”. This programme has helped the
management to gauge and monitor the overall service
performance of our sales team. By analyzing the results of
MSP, we are able to identify areas for improvements. The
management team has used these results to tailor-made
training programme to specific shop and individual level.
All these efforts align with the company’s philosophy of
providing “Service Excellence” to customer. Hopefully these
measures will help propel the company’s business forward.

R A KRITEBEHBRLD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. YEUNG Ming Biu, aged 79, the Chairman of the
Company, is a Co-founder of the Group. He has over 60
years’ experience in the watch business and is a Permanent
Honorary Director of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited. He holds Honorary Fellow
awarded by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Honorary Doctor degree awarded by Lansbridge University
of New Brunswick of Canada.

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 46, joined the Group
in 1993. He became Managing Director of the Company
in March 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the
son of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. FUNG Kwong Yiu, aged 71, joined the Group in 1974
and has over 49 years’ experience in the watch business.
He is a Permanent Honorary Director of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 53, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is the
daughter of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 56, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 29
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Kwok Yum, aged 60, joined the Group in 1969.
He became Director of the Company in April 2003 and has
over 46 years’ experience in the watch business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson (“Dr. Sun”), M.B.E., J.P.,
aged 90, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman
of Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is
the Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has
over 60 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of watches, and 29 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131).

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P., aged 60, has over
39 years’ experience in the manufacturing business. He is
a Member of the National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the President of Hong
Kong Economic & Trade Association and the President of
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. Dr.
Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and
a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894), Midas International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1172). He has resigned as Independent Non-
executive Director of Get Nice Holdings Limited (stock code:
0064) in April 2012. All companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael (“Mr. Choi”), aged 59, is
a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (practising). Mr. Choi has been
practising public accountancy in Hong Kong for over 22
years. Mr. Choi was formerly an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited
(stock code: 2626) which was listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange until its voluntary withdrawal of listing in
March 2015, and Simsen International Corporation Limited
(stock code: 0993), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SZE Yuk Woo, aged 64, is the General Manager
overseeing the Group’s general operation in the PRC. He
joined the Group in 1997 and has over 45 years’ experience
in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 55, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 33 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 57, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 35 years’ experience in the
watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain the high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding shareholder
interests. The Company has accordingly adopted good
corporate governance principles that emphasize a
quality board of Directors (“the Board”), effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders. It is, in addition,
committed to continuously improving these practices and
inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a quality board, sound internal control,
and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2015, the Company
has complied with the code provisions prescribed in the CG
Code set out in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except
for the deviation from the Code Provision A.4.1 which is
explained in the following relevant paragraph.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors (“the
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code for the year under
review.
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THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term total return for our shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Group’s strategy is to place equal emphasis
on achieving sustainable recurring earning growth and
maintaining the Group’s strong financial profile. Management
Discussion and Analysis contain discussion and analyses of
the Group’s performance and the basis on which the Group
generates or preserves value over the longer term and
the basis on which the Group will execute its strategy for
delivering the Group’s objective.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for long-
term performance of the Company, is responsible for
directing the strategic objectives of the Company and
overseeing the management of the business. Directors
are charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. Yeung Ming Biu,
approves and monitors Group wide strategies and
policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates
the performance of the Company, and supervises the
management of the Company (“Management”). Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Group Managing Director.
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Board Composition

At 31 March, 2015, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including the Chairman, Group Managing Director, Group
Finance Director, three Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the Directors and Senior
Management Section on pages 9 to 11. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Role of the Chairman is separate from that of Group
Managing Director. Such division of responsibilities helps to
reinforce their independence and accountability.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing the functions of, the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Group and the
Board meetings are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is responsible for approving the agenda of each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly informed on issues arising at Board meetings
and provided with adequate and accurate information in
a timely manner. The Chairman also actively encourages
Directors to be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and
make contribution to the Board’s functions. The Board,
under the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good
corporate governance practices and procedures and taken
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders.
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The Group Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is
responsible for managing business of the Group, attending
to the formulation and successful implementation of the
Group policies and assuming full accountability to the Board
for all Group operations. Acting as the principal manager of
the Group’s business, the Group Managing Director attends
to developing strategic operating plans that reflect the long-
term objectives and priorities established by the Board
and is directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the other Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each
core business divisions, he ensures that the Board is fully
apprised of the funding requirements of the business of
the Group and presents annual budgets to the Board for
consideration and approval. With the assistance of the
Group Finance Director, the Group Managing Director sees
to it that the funding requirements of the business are met
and he closely monitors the operating and financial results
of the business against plans and budgets, taking remedial
action when necessary. He maintains an ongoing dialogue
with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully
informed of all major business development and issues. He
is also responsible for building and maintaining an effective
team to support him in his role.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board of Directors. Among the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of them have
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. However, the independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation in annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
The management of the Company considered that there
is no imminent need to revise the letter of appointment of
independent non-executive directors by adding a specific
term in the letter of appointment.

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when
a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circular resolutions
with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by
additional verbal/written information or notification from the
Company Secretary and other executives as when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiary
companies are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever, warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors will receive details of agenda items for
decision and minutes of committee meeting in advance of
each Board meeting. With respect to regular meeting of
the Board, Directors receive written notice of the meeting
at least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.
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Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group
through their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board
and Committee meetings, and through meeting with key

members of the Management.

During the year ended 31 March, 2015, meetings and
Directors attendance records for the meetings held are set

out below:

Executive Directors
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (7) — Chairman

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (7)
— Group Managing Director

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (7)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain
— Group Finance Director

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

Note:

HITEH
BRES L) — XE

BOTEE SR (1)
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HER &
HBUEZ (1)

MEBTE
— SEVBES

EERELE
BIHBTTEF
BEREEB L
FHEEL
UM T A&

(1) Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to Directors to help ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and as director of the Company. In addition, Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Lam
Hing Lun, Alain attend external forums or brief sessions
(including delivery speeches by Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain) on
the relevant topics. Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael has also
participated in CPD programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors have provided to the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors and Board
Committees comprehensive Board agendas and papers.
Minutes of all Board meetings and Board Committees are
prepared by and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All the minutes are sent to Directors and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. The Company Secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations of the Listing Rules including publications
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcement and information relating to the Group and
assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual report of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings
in the Group’s securities, connected transactions and
price-sensitive information and ensures that the standard
and disclosure required by the Listing Rules are observed
and where required, reflected in the annual report of the
Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Whist the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and the Group
Managing Director, all members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Lam
Hing Lun, Alain has appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 1992 and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group affairs.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
and the Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner of the year end and the half year.

The following statement, which set out the responsibilities of
the Directors in relation to the financial statements, should
be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the
Auditor’s report on pages 45 to 47 which acknowledge the
reporting responsibilities of the Group’s Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparation the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board is satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in
respect of the audit fees they charged, the process and its
effectives of the audit and has resolved to recommend their
reappointment as the Company’s external auditors at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
were as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experience and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, and Mr. Choi Man Chau as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditors, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are published on the Group’s website.

During the year ended 31 March, 2015, 4 meetings were
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held. The attendance records for the audit committee BIrTORes BREEeez s LR
meetings are set out below: mEEyIm
Directors’
Attendance
EEHER
Members of the Audit Committee ERZE2HE
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson BERBIEL 4/4
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEEHLT 4/4
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael 23°Q)) | birtad 4/4

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under its terms of reference and other
duties of the Existing Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results and the Interim
Report and Annual Report of the Group and other financial,
internal control and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
Management, the Group internal and external auditors, with
a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets
the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to consider their
reports on the scope and outcome of their independent
review of the interim financial report and on their annual
audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representing from
Deloitte of their independence and objectively and holds
meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of their
audit, approve the fees thereon, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if required, to
be provided by them. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditors.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of Deloitte for
various services listed below is as follows:

e  Audit services — includes audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditors.
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Audited related services - included services that
would normally be provided by an external auditors
but not generally included in audit fees, for example,
audit of the Group’s pension plans, due diligence and
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or process,
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes
(if any). The external auditors are to be invited to
undertake these services that they must or are best
placed to undertake in their capacity as auditors.

Taxation related services — includes all tax compliance
and tax planning services except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. All other significant taxation
related work may be undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

Others services — includes, for example audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also permitted to assist management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.

General consulting services — the external auditors
are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it review with the Group’s internal
auditors the work plan for their audit together with their
resources requirements and consider the report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes its recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
a Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis. Dr. Sun
Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of the Committee. The
Committee meets for the determination of the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management of the Group.
In addition, the Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessing the performance of Directors and senior executive
of the Group and determining their remuneration packages.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are published on the Group’s
Website.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangement determined in accordance
with the performance of the Group and the individual’s
performance.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2015, one
remuneration committee meeting has been held. Throughout
the financial year, all members of the Remuneration
Committee have reviewed background information on
market data, the Group’s business activities and human
resources issues, and headcounts and staff costs. The
Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and approved
the proposed director fees for year ended 31 March 2016,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2015 and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors, however, do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
However, Executive Directors identify potential new directors
and recommend to the Board for decision. The Board
considers potential directorship based on the candidate’s
qualifications, business experience and suitability to the
Company. During the financial year ended 31 March, 2015,
no nomination meeting has held.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND GROUP RISK
MANAGEMENT

Introduction

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system
of internal control and assessment and management of
risks.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of internal control to ensure that the policies and procedures
in place are adequate. Reporting and reviewing activities
include review by the Executive Directors and the Board
and approval of detailed operational and financial reports,
budgets and plans provided by the management of the
business operations, review by the Board of actual results
against budgets, review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of internal audit function and risk management
function, as well as regular business review by Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each core
business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on an
ongoing basis.

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement errors,
losses or fraud.
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Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board is overall responsible for monitoring the
operations of the business within the Group. Executive
Directors are appointed to the Board of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of the operations of
those companies, including attendance at Board meetings,
review and approval of business strategies, budgets and
plans, and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each
business in the division within the agreed strategies and
similarity the management of each business is accountable
for its conduct and performance.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business and the Executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by Executive Directors. Executive Directors
review the differences to the budget and for approval. When
setting budgets, management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.

The Executive Directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results and key operating statistics of each
business and hold regular meetings with the executive
management team and senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance
against budgets, forecasts, significant risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, Group Finance Director and members
of his finance team review monthly performance against
budget and forecast, and to address accounting and finance
related matters.
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The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval prior to commitment by the Group Finance
Director or Executive Directors are required for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approval
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

Internal audit department reporting to the Group Managing
Director on regular basis and also directly to the Audit
Committee if necessary, provides independent assurance
as to the existence and the effectiveness of the risk
management activities and controls in the Group’s business
operations. Using risk assessment methodology and taking
into account the dynamics of the Group activities, internal
audit derives its yearly audit plan which is reviewed by the
Audit Committee, and reassessed during the year as needed
to ensure that adequate resources are deployed and the
plan’s objectives are met. Internal audit is responsible for
assessing the Group’s internal control system, formulating
an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting its findings
to the Group Finance Director, Group Managing Director
and the Audit Committee as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily
resolved. In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with
the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scopes
of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
team. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that the effective governance structure is put in place to
continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices within the Group in light of evolving environment
and regulatory requirements.

Under the term of reference, the Audit Committee has been
delegated the corporate function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance
within the Group. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling
its responsibilities, Company Secretary with representatives
from key departments of the Company are continuously
examine the corporate governance structure of the Group,
provide updates, identify emerging matters of compliance,
structure appropriate compliance mechanisms and monitor
compliance fulfilment on an ongoing basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied throughout
the year with all the code provisions of the CG Code
applicable during the year except for the deviation from
the Code Provision A.4.1 that is explained in the previous
relevant paragraph.

Group Risk Management

The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including the
deploying of insurance to transfer the financial impact
of risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible for
arranging appropriate insurance coverage.

Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’ internal control
system for the year ended 31 March, 2015 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and is satisfied that such
system are effective and adequate. In the view of the Board,
the system of internal control of the Group is sufficient to
safeguard the interest of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior Management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by
various channels including interviews and meetings. The
Group specially assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Group
Finance Director, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests of information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the view of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate with the Board or
Management directly.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to the shareholders
through publication of notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices, financial reports to shareholders,
additional information are also available to the shareholders
on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meeting
of the Company, such as the annual general meeting and at
which the Chairman and Directors are available to answer
questions on the Group’s business. All shareholders have
statutory right to call for extraordinary general meeting and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders
by sending to the Company Secretary at the registered
office a written request for such general meeting together
with the proposed agenda items. All substantial resolutions
at the general meeting are decided on a poll. The poll is
conducted by the Group’s Share Registrars and the results
of the poll are published on the websites at The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group. Financial
and other information is made available on the Group’s
website, which is regularly updated.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 48 to 49.

A special dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share was
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year. A
final dividend of 0.25 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000 and retained profits of HK$68,624,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$11.6
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director)

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Dr. Yeung Ming Biu, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31st March, 2015 are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March, 2015, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:
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Number of shares held

iR H#E

Percentage of

Total  issued share

Personal Family Corporate number capital of

interest interest interest of shares  the Company

T NGIRE

Name of director Esng BAEE FirER PGl RO&Y  TREEIH

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BREEL 19,669,583 7,920,000 128,164,561 155,754,144 27.30%
(note (a))
(Wit(a)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BT E 5,524,000 - (note (b)) 5,524,000 0.97%
(Wit)

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu BEBRLE 6,508,160 - (note (c)) 6,508,160 1.14%
(Wi()

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shiley ~ B&iEaL 2,640,000 221,161 (note (d)) 2,861,161 0.50%
(Wit ()

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain MEBRLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum BERLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FREEL - - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.56%
(note (e))
(li#E)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu and his wife, Madam Au Po Kee, are the
beneficial owners of 45% and 22.5% respectively of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited. Realtower Holdings Limited
and Dr. Yeung Ming Biu are the respective beneficial owners of 55%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 80% of the issued share capital of
Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial
owner of 127,776,000 shares in the Company.

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the beneficial owner of 47.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the Company.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is the beneficial owner of 10% and 7%
of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited and Real
Champ Limited respectively. Real Champ Limited is the beneficial
owner of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu is the beneficial owner of 6% of the issued
share capital of Real Champ Limited.

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of 7.5% of
the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by a director in trust for the
Company, none of the directors of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Realtower Holdings Limited B 27T 4 45%
% 22.5% ° Realtower Holdings Limited & 45
BHIZ18 + & B B % A Furama Investments
Limited 2 % 17 J& Z&55% & 10% ° Furama
Investments Limited® 2 # £ Datsun
Holdings Limited B % 17 f& 4<80% ° Datsun
Holdings Limited & 25 # A 127,776,000 & 7<
NaEIfEG o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3rd
November, 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). The
2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date on 3rd
November, 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company, the trustee of the eligible
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
eligible persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
No eligible persons shall be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and may include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before it can
be exercised. The exercise price per share payable on
the exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2nd
November, 2013. The options could be exercised by
the participants at any time during the option period
and notwithstanding that the 2003 Share Option
Scheme had expired.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’ BRETENRESEERMSES
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR ZRER| (&)
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) =ZZ=FBREE(E)
The following table discloses movements of the options FTEBRES A TEIMBEARE
granted under the 2003 Share Options Scheme to ﬁ\jmﬁ;z@gziﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁgwﬂéﬁﬁﬁ
directors, certain employees and consultants during the Ptz 28
year:
Number of
shares under Original Adjusted
options at Date of exercise exercise
Name of 1.4.2014 and grant of price per price per
category of participant 31.3.2015 options share share Exercisable period
R-ZZE-IF
mA-BR
—E-AF
=A E‘I‘j =] N
BRESR BRE  RASR ggE
SEREEERER ZBRHHE REBH B BROEE TTEDHE
HKS HKS
BT BT
(note)
(Brit)
Directors E%
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
mARREL
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
BITREE
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu 3,000,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
BEREE
Madam Yeung Man Yee,
Shirley 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
HEETL
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain 3,600,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
M Bt &
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum 3,600,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
14,520,000
Other employees E 1t & &
Ty;tpe A 14,400,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
A
Type B 18,000,000 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A  29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021
BiE NEH
Consultants B
Ty*pe A 2,640,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
A%
Type B 5,000,000 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A  29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021
BiE NEH
Total &5t 54,560,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES (Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Note: An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28th July,
2011 approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of
the Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for every
five ordinary shares held. The number of shares under the
outstanding options and the exercise price per share of the
outstanding options were adjusted accordingly pursuant to the
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13th August,
2013, a new share option scheme was adopted with
effect on 3rd November, 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) after the expiry of the 2003 Share Option

Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (i) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes or
is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group. The purpose of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for such
number of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the last day of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The exercisable period is determined by
the directors of the Company, which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be held
before it can be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equals to
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2nd November, 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under the
2013 Share Option Scheme during the year since its
effective date on 3rd November, 2013 and there was
no outstanding share option as at 31st March, 2015.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2015, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests in the share capital
of the Company.

Name of shareholder

BERERE

Datsun Holdings Limited
Furama Investments Limited
Realtower Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2015, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.

FTERRE)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
84% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 69% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$205,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 31.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31st March, 2015, the Group had a total of about 730
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set

by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option schemes and directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures” above and in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 22 to 26.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.
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AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Ming Biu
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 17th June, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENTAL WATCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31st March, 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17th June, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEEREMEZHEHIRER

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—_F-—LFE=F=+—HIFEE

Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income, gains and
losses

Distribution and selling
expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint
ventures

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
(expense) income
Items that may be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

EH

HA - Yezs K B 18

7 i R HE
TR

FE(REE =
BHEER

BR3¢ 1
PSR X

F N A

H 2w (Fs0) et

HERJEEEF D IEE

EE3

Bl E4E
P& S

Bl BE -

BEBINEBIES

ZERZER

TR ESRAE
2 AFEES

FREMEERX

FR2AEFEX)

Yo 25 48 7R

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Notes

Hret

2015 2014
—2-1% —F-MF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,109,031 3,476,513
(2,590,037) (2,864,093)
518,994 612,420
48,055 29,330
(214,382) (233,920)
(337,958) (360,659)
(15,214) (22,407)
631 (257)
9,524 5,457
9,650 29,964
(5,317) (9,516)
4,333 20,448
(2,180) (951)
(4,098) 764
(6,278) (187)
(1,945) 20,261




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEkEMEZHEIRER

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F-—LaFE=F=+—HIFE

Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to: (E518) -

Owners of the Company VNI Z N
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR HE 2R

Total comprehensive (expense) AT AT FEEZE

income attributable to: (Fs)amiass -

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE F SN

Non-controlling interests FEVERR 2
Earnings per share BRAT

Basic H K

Diluted e

AT AL REMEF R A

Notes

Hiat

12

12

2015 2014
—ZE-h8F —ET—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,508 20,605
(175) (157)
4,333 20,448
(1,731) 20,483
(214) (222)
(1,945) 20,261

0.79 HK cents #{ll  3.61 HK cents /&l

0.79 HK cents #{ll  3.61 HK cents /&1l

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE AR R &R
At 31st March, 2015
R-E-—HF=F=1+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and
equipment

Deposits for acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Deferred tax assets

Property rental deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Bank loans

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

FRBEE

Y =

Rkl

WiEm - ezl
R EE

/NI
BERNAIZ R

AftHES

BMBEE

ELRAEE
MEHEERE

@Jéﬁ?

%

[V

ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%%m
AR @R

RITEHRNE S

mMEAE

B 5 & EHAb AR

A BB
RITH K

MEEERE

BERERRBARE

EREBAR
RITER

ELERAAE

BEFE

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Notes

g

13

15
16

17
22

21

21
22

2015 2014
—®-hfF —T-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
247,067 280,179
3,333 530
35,696 35,969
119,936 145,541
5,652 14,779
306 807
18,445 36,925
430,435 514,730
1,783,767 1,787,924
141,947 123,470
5,887 7,884
344,037 425,099
2,275,638 2,344,377
152,703 145,171
2,310 2,640
228,377 288,924
383,390 436,735
1,892,248 1,907,642
2,322,683 2,422,372
109,137 202,500
1,755 1,857
110,892 204,357
2,211,791 2,218,015




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B IR O R

At 31st March, 2015
R-FE-—HF=F=1+—H

2015 2014
—®-hfF —FT-mE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HteF FET FET

Capital and reserves BARR# R
Share capital f& A 23 57,061 57,061
Reserves & 2,153,391 2,159,401

Equity attributable to owners ~ ARRQ BB AEE#EZ

of the Company 2,210,452 2,216,462
Non-controlling interests JEE IR 1,339 1,553
Total equity W 2,211,791 2,218,015

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 143  HNFE48HEF 143 B 2 S WM BHERL
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Z#EEFEWR _ZT—RAFNA+LHILAERK
Directors on 17th June, 2015 and are signed on its behalf ~ # T3 - WH NFIEERAEEE -

by:

Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
BHE BOTEE
CHAIRMAN DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
T & F /R EFAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—_F-—LFE=F=+—HIFEE

At 1st Aprl, 2013

Exchange dffference arising on
translation of foreign operations

Exchange difference released upon
deemed disposal of an associate

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets

Profit (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Deemed acquisition of adaitional
Interests in a subsidiary (note b)

2013 final divicend paid

2014 interim dividend paid

2014 final dividend proposed

At 31st March, 2014

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets
Profit (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

2014 final dividend paid

2015 special dividend paid

2015 final dividend proposed

At 31st March, 2015

WN-E-Z%BA-A

BEBERIELY
ENER
REAEHE-RRERTE

RIHE-RNELATL
BRIy
BIRECT-ZERERE
BRE- TSR
HE-T-RERERE

R-R-ME=A=1-A
BEBNRRFELL
EXER
Bl
LYERY
(R

EneEda(RR)EE

R-2-1F=R=1-A

Attributable to owners of the Company

em G

LN N
Share  Capital Asset Non-

Share  Share  option redemption  Capital revaluation  Special Translation ~Retained Dividend controlling

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  profits  reserve Sub-total interests Total
Ra  REGE BREGE S4REEE G4RE HEEGER GHRE ABRR REEN RERE M FEBEE &

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  AKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  AKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  AKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

Fhr T TEr TEr FEn TE TEr TEr TR T TEr FEn En

(note g)
(Hia)

57,061 549306 83554 425 - 9334 5180 81657 1412812 28531 2207950 - 220190
= = = = = = = (886) = = (886) (65) (%1)
- - - - - - - 2 29) = = = =
- - - - - 164 - - - - 164 - 764
= = = = = = = - 0606 - 260 (167) 20,448
- - - - - 764 - (861) 20580 - 048 (222) 20,261
- - - - - - - - - - - 2616 2615
- - - - 840 - - - - - 840 (840) -
- - - - - - - - - (28531 (28531) - (2853)
- - - - - - - - (420 - 420 - 20
- - - - - - - - (142) 1,426 - - -

57,061 549306 83554 425 840 10098 5180 80,796 1,427,686 1426 2,216,462 1,668 2218015
_ - - = - - - ) - - 14 (39 (@180
- - - = - 0% - - - - [40%) - 0%
- - - - - - - - 4508 - 4,508 (175) 433
= = = = - [409%) - 1) 4508 - (173) (214 (1949)
- - - - - - - - - (140 (1,420 - (14%)
= = = = = = = - 28 - (2859 - (8%
_ _ _ _ - = = - (140 142 = - -

57,061 549306 83554 425 840 6000 5180 78855 1427915 1426 2210452 1339 2211791

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F-—LaFE=F=+—HIFE

Notes:

(@)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital and special reserves
of those companies which were acquired by the Group pursuant to a
group reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these acquired
subsidiaries represent the credit arising on reduction of their paid up
share capital under the group reorganisation.

Subsequent to Li Loong (as defined in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements) becoming a subsidiary of the Company in May
20183, the Group further subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong
in September 2013, for a cash consideration of NT$60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,698,000). The Group’s equity interest in Li
Loong increased from 90% to 96%. This is accounted for as a
deemed acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary.

HiEE -

AEBZFHRFEEERARREETRAEE
EARBRB-NAN=FETEEEAMKE
ZRREBBETRAREZZBMIREBARZ
FrRIFER - 2SS REIE A R 2 Bl e
RIBEEEA - HRZFAREHRRANE
2R -

RAOE(EERGEUBHRRMIE24)E-F
—=FRAKRARFZHMBARIE KT
—=F A AEE#E— T REE 6,000,000 &
BERLf - TR & B/ H & % 60,000,000 7T
(#ZF 715,698,000/ 7TT) - REBER HREZ
[ #E FR 90% 12 I 2 96% ° Lt Wi 2 A RRFI1E
BAEWEE — B A B 2 oM e -

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—_F-—LFE=F=+—HIFEE

Operating activities BT
Profit before taxation B 54 Bl i A
Adjustments for: FHELATIER -
Depreciation of property, M - R
plant and equipment BB E
Gain on disposal of HEMHEESH
available-for-sale financial BEZ W

assets
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill

LB R EEE

Interest expense FMERX
Interest income FEWA
(Gain) loss on disposal HEWE - #aER
of property, plant and wfz (W) BB
equipment
Share of results of JE(REEE RRZ
associates E
Share of results of joint i VN v
ventures E
Operating cash flows before LEECEHR 2
movements in working KEREGRE
capital
(Increase) decrease in property ¥¥M &4 (3EH0)
rental deposits Vi a
Decrease in inventories FERD
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & H b fE Y BR 3K
receivables Vi
Increase (decrease) in trade B 5 N A FERTERX
and other payables #anCE)
Cash from operations KEEBEA RS
Income taxes paid in B LA TR b & 32 <t
ZFTiSEL
Hong Kong BB
Other jurisdictions Hi R AR
Net cash from operating REEBFRIEEZ
activities REeFE

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,650 29,964
37,027 46,378
— (197)

— 1,623
15,214 22,407
(2,544) (1,640)
(17,255) 1,480
(631) 257
(9,524) (5,457)
31,937 94,815
(3,664) 8,675
3,225 273,175
3,549 31,916
7,920 (7,646)
42,967 400,935
(1,637) (5,703)
(1,615) (6,384)
39,715 388,848




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE-E-—BF=F=F+—HILFE

Investing activities KEEE
Interest received A& ES)
Proceeds from disposal

of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of HEIHTEES/E
available-for-sale financial EZEHRIE

assets
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Repayment from (advance to) A& & A RIE
a joint venture (B
Purchase of property, plant BEWMHE  HEX
and equipment B

Deposits paid for acquisition WHEYZ « HES Rk

of property, plant and wE2EMNES
equipment
Net cash from (used in) BB E BN AT EE A (FTFE)
investing activities 2R EFE
Financing activities BB EE
New bank loans raised FERITER
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER
Dividends paid ERRE
Interest paid ENEAIESE
Net cash used in financing REFREMEL
activities ReFE
Net (decrease) increase in RekFRREEBERAZ

cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at F#ZEE K

the beginning of the year ZRKFEEH
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EX& &)~

changes e

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year,
represented by bank RERFK
balances and cash

HEME - B3k
R TS 508

Wi — B AR

OBl )38 hn) 58

FRzZA\CIEFRARE
HE - ARITHERR

Note
Hiaz

24

2014

—ZT—OF

HK$’000

FET

2,544 1,640
24,713 239
5,029 197

- 13
35,100 (45,000)
(11,062) (40,502)
(3,333) (530)
52,991 (83,943)
239,922 487,450
(392,998) (683,564)
(4,279) (32,811)
(15,546) (24,241)
(172,901) (253,166)
(80,195) 51,739
425,099 373,221
(867) 139
344,037 425,099
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and acts as
an investment holding company as well as engaged in
watch trading. The shares of the Company are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are detailed
in the corporate information section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new interpretation and amendments
to HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (‘HKAS”) 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 Levies

Amendments to HKAS 39

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

FE P T RT B A48
HER ([ FH
(%)

& \\)?r

g

g
%Al 1)

TfF o

ik g

&I
]

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments'

Regulatory deferral accounts®

Revenue from contracts with customers’

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations’

Disclosure initiative’

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions*

Equity method in separate financial
statements”’

Sale and contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle’

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle’

7K g [ 4 52 2 1 PR DA T 2 A4
AR 35 RIS S BB B RS
g -

BRAMBHREEAE IR SHIA'
ARUBREENE Y EEREEF
ERUBREENE Y BPAbE’
BEUBRSEAE R UWEARSEERL
(BI%) giRE’
FASHENZ 1R (BTA)  REHES
BB EE 165 ERBRARS A
EoERR IR ZEE
(B31%)
BB EE 165 B EEMEY
BREHEAEANR
(B31%)
BRAGHEAZ19R(BIA) EREAME -
EEH
RGBSR (BIR) BubBHE
LR
BRUBHEENSZ0RR REAEBRERELTR
BiEarEdE 285 RERAZRHCE
CHEY EHERRA®

BRUBHSENE 0% REER: ERAKAZ
BAMBRERNE Y IOMERS
RER G EHF 285
(BI%)

EAMBREEN(BITA)  BAVBERSEEN
—E-%F3
“E-
LEEYE

BAMBREEN(EIAR)  AAYKEEEA
%%
“E--FHRE
LERME!

ERMBRERER(BITA)  BEBEREED
:g__¢1
~E-MEHRE
LEEYE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

HgE5=

2.

RAERTHE

E-—AF=A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1st January, 2016, with earlier application
permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2017, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

& BR A A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

R REBTBBRBR
HEA(TEBYBHREER )
(&)

BEREMBRELUFORIEMTA
(%)

EBVBRELENFIFR I TERT
FamT

e FERBAETBCEAFEI%
(SR T A BRAKFEI&EEZ
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WHREHNRERERB N2 ER
BEXRNFE2EBBHIRE  kEA
SRS RKREERS ZFEM
EERHRERECEBRERE -
—MRIEREB ST ERIZE K
KEHE - KRB W ARKKEE 4
ReERERTESMEE XS
BAFHEZEBEIRE  UkE
BMEEANERSNEEBHE
EZBEREEAINASE ME
EERNSCHEZEBIR &
AFEFARMBEERREZHR
T2 o A EMERIRE RKRA
REHYRERSHERIZATE
ETE o BN RIBBFBUBRE
XRFE IR - EEEAEL A
Bl 7:&E - REME2EKETI®R
RARE (WIFFHEEEE)HIE
ZRAFEEZE  EREWA—K
PIE2EFER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE _F—aF=HA=1—HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1st April, 2018 and 1st April, 2017
respectively. The application of these two standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of
the impact of the application of these standards and
hence have not yet qualified the extent of the impact.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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—AF=A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates and joint ventures is described
below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Watch repair service income is recognised when
services are provided.

Show window rental income is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant rental agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
period of the lease or over their estimated useful lives
of 20 years for those located in Mainland China (the
“PRC”) or 50 years for those located in Hong Kong.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of other items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method, at the rate of 20%
per annum. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency, i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates, at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rate for the period,
unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangement, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including amount
due from a joint venture, trade and other receivables
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the credit period granted, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
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3.

RAERTHE

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments previously recognised in profit or loss
are not be reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

3.

n-i_BZK(Zm

tRITAE)
SHEEREE)

TRHEERAESENMBEEREER
BEROBEEEIR  EES REME
WERFERSN - EEmMESEBER
BBRIEL R - BBRAZIREE
“@JEATE SR - BE S HEME
PR AAR A N AT E B - EAS R B R
AR QS o EL1& U 3 55 A E MEH < 3K
R HEt ABERA - BIBRAZER
HEZENERER

WAl ESMEERR /D RE -
FTRINEMEE KR ER 2 Rt B
REIRNEH DR EE

?ﬁ?ﬁa%&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%Z@%ﬂé%ﬁﬁ

CINEEREE O REBRES B
’J‘ A BR A ERE L ERERRE
BIREERL2EMNEH  RItpCHE
RZBEBE/EBED TARE -
HZEERBERELE B ZKE
B TNMEEERERRER B E#H
DN

RN IEEERZ AT HE SRR E
ZREBEITSEBBRERD - BE
EE’?TE%:ZEH“FHE)JDE&EC/HJ‘@
2HWnER  TNEESGHHER
ﬂ+



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and the employee’s pension scheme of the respective
municipal governments in various places in the PRC
where the Group operates, are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31st March, 2015 and 2014,
impairment loss of HK$1,623,000 was recognised.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 14.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s turnover represents consideration received
or receivable from sales of watches.

The Group has two operating segments, which are
analysed based on geographical markets of the goods
sold, being (a) Hong Kong, and (b) Taiwan, Macau
and the PRC, which is also the basis of organisation
of the Group for managing the business operations.
The Group determines its operating segments based
on the internal reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, being the Managing Director of the
Group, that are used to allocate resources and assess
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEERE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment UWTAEREEZEEDIE D 25
revenue and results by operating segments. Was REZEDHT ©
Segment revenue Segment profit
pal=idl & 7 EB Uk &

2015 2014 2015 2014
—z-nr QRESNEE —z-ns [EEIE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET F#ET FHET

Hong Kong e 2,185,609 2,365,929 28,287 80,885
Taiwan, Macau ==

and the PRC K 923,422 1,110,584 (13,657) (11,732)

3,109,031 3,476,513 14,630 69,153

Unallocated other ko 2 H g A

income 20,897 1,300
Unallocated KA ARFAL

corporate

expenses (20,818) (23,282)
Finance costs BE R (15,214) (22,407)
Share of results of E{HEEE NG 2

associates E 631 (257)
Share of results of EHAZ AR Z

joint ventures ES 9,524 5,457
Profit before BR 5% AT A

taxation 9,650 29,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of finance costs, share of results
of associates and joint ventures and unallocated
other income and expenses. Unallocated expenses
include auditor’'s remuneration, directors’ emoluments,
exchange loss, impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill and operating expenses of inactive
companies. This is the measure reported to the
Managing Director of the Group for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two
years ended 31st March, 2015.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segments.

5. 7

AT RAEERE

HE R ()

ENREIDZEE

EBEDN -

Segment assets

PHEE PHMEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
= T T et — T UF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FET FETT
Hong Kong BB 1,331,557 1,267,683 91,474 90,078
Taiwan, Macau &% B’
and the PRC KA B 862,317 960,491 61,185 54,580
Segment total o EPABET 2,193,874 2,228,174 152,659 144,658
Unallocated KA 512,199 630,933 341,623 496,434
Group’s total ANEEBE 2,706,073 2,859,107 494,282 641,092
The segment assets by location of assets are the same REEMEHE D 2 D5 EEHIRT
as by location of markets of the goods sold. EERMEZMNBEEZ|IDEHRER

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance

Segment liabilities

and allocating resources between segments:

\

HF
ol B
R

7

okt

BRIE K 7 BRfE 20 B B R

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates and joint
ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets, amount due from a joint
venture, taxation recoverable as well as assets of
the headquarters and bank balances and cash;
and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities
and bank loans as well as other payables of
the headquarters. Bank loans are classified as
unallocated corporate liabilities because they are
managed centrally by the treasury function of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results or
segment assets:

DEBE R )
Ht o BE#

AEDHMEEXNHEEMEBRZE
L

(Gain) loss on disposal Impairment loss (Decrease) increase in
Additions of property, of property, plantand ~ recognised in respect non-current property

plant and equipment Depreciation equipment of goodwill rental deposits

HENE BER HEERIL FRanEae

RENR  BERRE & By pACe) BEER fe(8Y)EN
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
EIE EIE EIE “5RE “F-PE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKk$'000
TAT AT TAT TAT TAT
Hong Kong ¥ 3,551 13,063 16,546 16,833 (17,255) 783 - - (21,225) 7314

Tawen, Macauand 4 - BFIR

the PRC E 8,041 2,510 20,310 29,331 - 697 - - 2,745 (958)
Segment total PEo) 11,592 35,573 36,856 46,164 (17,255) 1480 - - (18,480) 6,416
Unllocated AR - - n 214 - - - 1,623 - -
Group’s total REEEH 11,592 35,573 3,021 46,378 (17,255) 1480 - 1,628 (18,480) 6,416

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding available-for-sale financial assets, deferred
tax assets, property rental deposits, amount due from
a joint venture and interests in associates and joint
ventures) by geographical location of the assets is
detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Taiwan, Macau and the PRC B - B &H

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Carrying amount of
non-current assets

FREBEEZREE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
199,845 215,879
50,555 64,830
250,400 280,709




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B —_F—aF=HA=1+—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HtWA - hzmREE
2015 2014
—E-RF —F—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Show window rental income BWEES WA 21,525 21,027
Repairing service income HAE RIS U 1,716 2,084
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEME  HEREEL
property, plant and equipment Wz (E18) 17,255 (1,480)
Interest income MEUA 2,544 1,640
Exchange gain (loss) b 5 Wz (&5 18) 163 (339)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HE&ERHEESRHEEZ
sale financial assets e - 197
Impairment loss recognised in AEERRZBEEE
respect of goodwill - (1,623)
Others EHAth 4,852 7,824
48,055 29,330
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERAE
2015 2014
—F-1F —T-mEF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings: RITEEZHNE :
Wholly repayable within ARAFANEHEER
five years 12,695 21,786
Not wholly repayable within BEARTFRAEHER
five years 2,519 621

15,214 22,407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRBANRF

2015 2014
—FE-HF —T—MF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Profit before taxation has been BRAE AR A 2 HIBR
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EZ=M& (#1719) 18,049 20,209
Other staff’'s retirement benefits ~ Efb 5 8 7 R & F5H 2l

scheme contributions R 7,562 7,039
Other staff costs H i 58 B B 85,282 131,704
Total staff costs BB AEEE 110,893 158,952
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 2,780 2,780
Depreciation of property, Y% - eSS RERETE

plant and equipment 37,027 46,378
Operating lease rentals in FHEBEEMFECREHRE

respect of rented premises He 224,329 225,164

94 RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=-H=1+—HIFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2014: nine) directors were as follows:

2015
it

Retirement  Performance-

Salaries benefits related
and other scheme incentive
Fees benefits  contributions bonus

Bk ENRN  RRER

Be  RERN  GEMR ERRA
HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS$'000
i1 f&r fér Tér

9.

Total

g
HKS'000
i

EEREEZHE
EffEMNNB(ZE—NE: LR)
EEZAZHERT -
014
“E-pE
Retirement  Performance-
Selaries Denefits related
and other scheme incentive
Fees benefits ~ contributions bonus Total

FeR  EMEH  ZBEE
BE  RMEN  HEER  ZBEH h)
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HK$O00
TET 7T 1 7L TET

(note) (note)
z) il
Evecutive directors gz
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BBERT - 3,435 459 4 3,936 - 342 459 333 4216
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis s - 3,724 423 42 4,189 - 3,724 42 338 4,480
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu BEATE - 3017 335 4 3,394 - 3431 33 333 409
Madem Yeung Man Yee, ~ B&ELL
Shirley - 97 108 4 947 - 97 108 333 1,288
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain HEBLE = 2,347 239 4 2,628 - 2,348 239 334 2,91
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum EEYRE = 2,103 200 4 2,415 - 2,111 210 334 2,115
Independent non-executive  BFE{TES
directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hu, Samson ~~ FEEHL 180 - - - 180 180 - = = 180
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FAERL 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael ~ Z30fi%4 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 15,423 1,834 252 18,049 540 15,83 1834 2,000 20,209

Note: The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge.

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were
executive directors of the Company. Details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

Hiat R R EAL TR B EAL AT
BAZFE—BALLMEE -

AEBRUZSHMERDSARA]
HITES - WEZMESFBR EXH

& o

BOTER R E TN R AN R B Z TTAREL -
EXFEEN M BREFERITR
REREIRS <2 -

TR AREE I E R A& A
T(BREZRER)XMEIANE -
ERMAREB R NAKREBIL 2 R
}Mi%iﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁ c FAMBESNECL
ol & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Overprovision in prior years

Taxation in other jurisdictions
(Over)underprovision in prior
years

Deferred taxation (note 22)

10. IR

B :

BB MEHR
BEFEBRRE

oty A AR 2 BB
B (BERE) B
TR

EIEFRIB (M aE22)

2015 2014
—F-IF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,067 9,459
(444) (2,746)
3,623 6,713
2,381 1,966
(1,085) 365
1,296 2,331
398 472
5,317 9,516

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax

(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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RECPBEMEMESFENDEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FAIEHRAXZ (&)

AEERAL A ERBEEERN
Hip 2 mE sk n ME RN T -

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014

—E-8F —T—MF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit before taxation B 25 AT A 9,650 29,964
Tax at the applicable income tax 7FE'<TJ‘ELFHFfr S E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) —Z—MF : 16.5%)

=& Z 18 1,592 4,944
Tax effect of share of results of BBt E AR ZEE 2T

associates % (104) 42
Tax effect of share of results of EHAZERARIZEE R

joint ventures B (1,571) (900)
Tax effect of expenses not AAHRAT o RMGTE

deductible for tax purposes 2,280 3,765
Tax effect of income not taxable HAERFUA Z G2

for tax purposes (3,141) (713)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERT I BB 2 I

recognised & 7,582 5,044
Tax effect of utilisation of BABRARERTBER

tax losses not previously G

recognised - (210)
Effect of different tax rates of P B I 48 2 Y
subsidiaries operating in other BARIFTEATRB =

jurisdictions -7 (317) (521)

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,529) (2,381)

Others HAh 525 446

Tax charge for the year REFEHRIBZ N 5,317 9,516

£ — F F F 3 Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividend recognised as
distribution during the year:
Special dividend for financial

year ended 31st March, 2015
of 0.5 HK cents (interim
dividend for financial year
ended 31st March, 2014:
0.75 HK cents) per share

on 570,610,224 (2014:
570,610,224) shares

Final dividend for financial year
ended 31st March, 2014
of 0.25 HK cents (financial
year ended 31st March,
2013: 5.0 HK cents) per
share on 570,610,224 (2013:
570,610,224) shares

Dividend proposed after year

end:

Proposed final dividend
for financial year ended
31st March, 2015 of 0.25
HK cents (financial year
ended 31st March, 2014
0.25 HK cents) per share
on 570,610,224 (2014
570,610,224) shares

1. BRE

2015
=

HK$’000
FET

FRAEHRRDIKLZ

BB
570,610,224 i3 (==&
—PO4F : 570,610,224
BFEZEEZT
—REF=A=+—H
IE B EERRIRE
BFR0.58IL(EEZ
TE—NFE=A=1+—
A 1F B BF S B AR
B 1 0.75%1) 2,853
¥ 570,610,224 I (==
—=4% :570,610,224
BFEZEE-F
—mE=A=+—H
IEBT R FE R B
B 0.25B1I(BE=
T—=FE=A=+—
HIEMBEE : 5.0
i) 1,426

2014
—T—mE
HK$’000
FET

4,280

28,531

4,279

32,811

FREBRZE

¥ 570,610,224 % (==
—PO4F : 570,610,224
BFTEZEE-FT

—RAF=A=+—H
1F BB S #ER K A
i% B 0.25

(BE-_Z—WE=A1
=+—BLHBREE :

0.257%&1l)

A final dividend of 0.25 HK cents (2014: 0.25 HK
cents) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per KARIEEARLERERANE SR
share attributable to owners of the Company is based FITHIRE A T8UERTE -

on the following data:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —T -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Earnings 2
Earnings for the purposes of AEEREAREEAT
basic and diluted earnings ZBA(EAREHEEB A
per share (profit for the year JEAR A& )
attributable to owners of the
Company) 4,508 20,605
2014
—E-AF
’000
FHE
Number of shares Hﬁﬁﬂﬁ
Number of ordinary shares for AESREARAFZ
the purpose of basic earnings AR B
per share 570,610 570,610
Effect of dilutive potential BEEELTBR
ordinary shares -7
— share options — FEARE - —
Number of ordinary shares for AEERESAN
the purpose of diluted earnings  E@AxE B
per share 570,610 570,610
The diluted earnings per share for both years has not Eﬁ{lir‘z:ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬂjﬁﬂ BFEAN
included the effect from the Company’s share options NAIEIRE 7 2 TR B IS A
because the exercise prices of the share options are 2T EEBERAARIKRMD ZEST
higher than the average market price of the shares of B o

the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE-F-AF=A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - WE R BE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and and Motor
buildings  equipment vehicles Total
HE & £E
T REF k& AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET
COST A
At 1st April, 2013 R-ZZE—-=FmA—H 195,578 249,186 4,190 448,954
Exchange adjustment & 5 % 27 106 - 133
Additions NE - 34,693 880 35,573
Disposals & - (25,624) (1,711) (27,335)
At 31st March, 2014 R-Z—NF=A=+—H 195,605 258,361 3,359 457,325
Exchange adjustment & 5 % (29) (322) - (351)
Additions NE - 11,386 206 11,592
Disposals & (8,186) (7,974) — (16,160)
At 31st March, 2015 R-ZT—AF=A=+—H 187,390 261,451 3,565 452,406
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1st April, 2013 R-ZZE—=FIA—H 21,668 132,580 2,462 156,710
Exchange adjustment  [& 5 3% (10) (316) — (326)
Provided for the year —~ ANEEHHE 4,203 41,831 344 46,378
Eliminated on disposals i & K il $4 - (24,268) (1,348) (25,616)
At 31st March, 2014 R-ZT—NF=A=+—H 25,861 149,827 1,458 177,146
Exchange adjustment  [& ¥ % (11) (121) - (132)
Provided for the year —~ AEZHBHE 4,132 32,525 370 37,027
Eliminated on disposals & i £ (1,293) (7,409) - (8,702)
At 31st March, 2015 R-Z—RF=A=+—H 28,689 174,822 1,828 205,339
CARRYING VALUES  EHEE
At 31st March, 2015 RZE—RAFE=A=+—H 158,701 86,629 1,737 247,067
At 31st March, 2014 R=-Z—WE=A=+—H 169,744 108,534 1,901 280,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property,
plant and equipment because the allocation between
the land portion and building portion cannot be made

13. Y% - EBERREE)

HRETEREE L2 L Ek &
BFBOH TR MBS - HEEXEH
AEELM I AYE  BERR

reliably. o
2015 2014
—E-hfF —T—MmF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
The carrying value of property MEERZERERRE
interests comprises:
Properties held under: BRTANEAOBE 2ME
Long leases in Hong Kong REE 2 RAEEL 143,196 152,955
Medium-term leases in the PRC A B Z F BiFE 47 15,505 16,789
158,701 169,744
GOODWILL 14. HE
HK$'000
FET
COST FR A
At 1st April, 2013 R-ZE—=FMA—H —
Exchange adjustment BE W 5 B (59)
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 24) R U —FE B R T (At 24) 1,682
At 31st March, 2014 and 2015 RIE-—NER-ZT—HF
—A=+—H 1,623
IMPAIRMENT e
At 1st April, 2013 R-ZE—=FMA—H —
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RERERZBEBRE 1,623
At 31st March, 2014 and 2015 RIE-—NER-ZT—RF
—A=+—H 1,623

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st March, 2015

At 31st March, 2014

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

BE—

14.

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU”)
comprising one subsidiary in watch trading.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the budget period. The management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. Changes in revenue
and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Group
performed impairment review for goodwill based on
cash flow forecasts of the CGU derived from the most
recent financial budget for the next five years approved
by the management and cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using 2% growth rate.
The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows was
10.54%. The Group recognised impairment loss in
profit or loss of HK$1,623,000 due to the operating
loss and the uncertainty of future prospects of the
subsidiary.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

14. BHE (&)

BREAATNS  BEEIEZRS
EXBM(IREELEMN]) 88—
8] F SR AR 8K 2 BB 2 A

HERSELEM Z A RESETR
EREEAEEEERE - EREER
BERREZR/PRE BRIXR
BB SZH I BERNERKAE
B BEEEBEMAMATL RGFRIE
& MZBAT L R R RS EZREEE
Zﬁmﬁaﬁﬁ&&ﬁééiﬁﬁz
BERR - Wa M EERRAZEE) A
ﬂ&L%M&ﬁm%%XEmZﬁ%
REE -

REBE-ZT—NF=A=1+—HItF
B AEBREBELCEEENECHE
RAAARRAFUEREC RS RE
BRI EBETRESRN mMAF
Mg ZRERENAERER 2% #
THE - BUMEBARESRE 2L
EH10.54% c AR BB NMZH

BRARIARRAEZTHEEE  ASE
B 72 18 2 FE SR B (B /B 18 1,623,000 74
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R
For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

15. BE QT 2R

2015 2014
—E-hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET

Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMEERNE 2R E

associates BN
Exchange adjustment ME H 38 B

Share of post-acquisition profits — FE{EULRE & 2 3% 7

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill
of HK$14,738,000 (2014: HK$15,113,000) arising on
acquisition of associates.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31st March, 2015
and 2014 are as follows:

30,201 30,201
(1,967) (1,063)
7,462 6,831
35,696 35,969

FTAFELETIRE KA 2 755 14,738,000
BT (ZZ—PU4F : 15,113,000 7T ) 3K
BURER N F] o

AEEBERRIR_ZE—AFER_-F
—OFE=A=+—BzZFHBEWOT :

Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Principal
Name of associate and operation ownership interest voting power held activity
B L &
BENTERB EENH PR Rzt Bl REZRERLH TEBEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
= SN —TNF el —T[F
NEEEROAR AT Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading
= F RIS
KITEBRRNDBRAA] Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading
nMERRNERAR] Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading

— % — & F F 3§, Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A% Rk M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. Bt N B 2R (£)

UHBHERZBE QAR ZEER

Aggregate information of associates that are not

104

individually material

2015 2014
—F-1F —FT-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group’s share of profit NEBEEF(EE) X
(loss) and total comprehensive 2EWE(FAX) B
income (expense) 631 (257)
Aggregate carrying amount of KEBRZEHE T2
the Group’s interests in these BFTEREE
associates 35,696 35,969
16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
2015 2014
—E-FHF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMEERAIZ
joint ventures BREBA 21,807 21,807
Exchange adjustment IE N A 808 837
Share of post-acquisition profits — FE(FUREE & Z & 7 19,682 10,158
42,297 32,802
Amount due from a joint venture U —R& % Q72 KA
(Note a) (Htita) 77,639 112,739
119,936 145,541

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE-F-BF=A=+—ALFE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31st March,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Place of Proportion
incorporation of ownership
Name of joint venture and operation interest
= i A AL B e
EEATAE &E R LB
B EEEERERA A The PRC 40%
(“Huimei”) ([ &3 ) #
ERFEERERAA Macau 45%

(‘Hei Tung”) (TER]) B

Notes:

(@ The amount, which is due from Hei Tung, is unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed repayment term. The Group expects that
the amount will be settled after twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and therefore classifies the amount as a
non-current asset.

(b)  The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of Huimei. Huimei
is jointly controlled by the Group and the other significant
equity owner by virtue of contractual arrangements among
equity owners. Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.

(c)  The Group holds 45% of the paid-in capital of equity owners
Hei Tung. Hei Tung is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other significant equity owner by virtue of contractual
arrangements between the two equity owners. Therefore, Hei
Tung is classified as a joint venture of the Group.

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill
of HK$4,147,000 (2014: HK$4,294,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31st
March, 2012.

Proportion of

voting power Principal
held activity
BEZRE

R LB FEXER
40% Watch trading

(Note b) (B1atb)  FER&EH

45%
(Note c) (K1t c)

(a)

Watch trading

EWERZRBLRERR 22 B
EETENS - NEEEBHZREBL
EWRAREBH T Z@EAREE IJH:
EATAIEE/\*E;%g'E//\LEJjéF n=
—=f=RA=+—8 ' ZFEREL 55\7f
SRR IABI AR 25 -

REEFAEEXIEHRAZ40%  EX
REMEES A ZBTL 2 a8 %HEm
EAKEES —REEEAK ﬁ&%\h
Bt - EXDERAKEZEEAF

AEBFBEERREREAEBBERAZ
45% - EREAMBBREREE A ZHFT L
ZERNZHMIEAREEES —FREE
EAAK W?I%IJ Hilt - ERDBERA
SEZzAZERTA

AP ASEEMIRER A ZEE 4,147,000

BIL(ZE

— PO : 4,294,000 77T ) 5

BERBE_ZE-——_F=A=+—H1It
FEAUEBES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are
not individually material

16.

BERF 2R LB

UHBHERZEE QAR ZEER

The Group’s share of profit and — ZNEE FEAG % F K& 2 K

total comprehensive income miBE

Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBERZES LA

Group’s interests in these joint AEtEREE
ventures

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Listed investments k&
Equity securities listed in BB LM ZRAFES
Hong Kong (Note a) (Kiata)
Unlisted investments ELTIRE
Managed fund portfolio EREASKREMAS
(Note b) (Htitb)

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,524 5,457
42,297 32,802
17. At HESREE
2015 2014
—E-FF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
99 129
5,553 14,650
5,652 14,779




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

18.

(@)

At the end of the reporting period, all the equity securities
listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair values, which have been
determined with reference to quoted bid prices in an active
market.

The managed fund portfolio as at 31st March, 2015 comprises
of unlisted investments. The fund is stated at fair value with
reference to the quoted market prices provided by brokers
which are financial institutions.

The managed fund portfolio as at 31st March, 2014 was
managed by professional investment manager and that
portfolio mainly comprised real estate fund in the Asian
markets. The fund was stated at fair value provided by the
brokers with reference to the net assets value of the investment
portfolio as at 31st March, 2014.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Receivable from a joint venture

(Note) (Haz)
Property rental and utilities I EX ol YN
deposits
Advances to other suppliers ) L At i 7 A SR
VAT recoverable AU [ 2 SE{E AR
Other receivables H b pE IR K

B 7 WK

Rl —FHAERRZIES

Note: The amount represents reimbursements receivable from a joint
venture under a procurement arrangement (see note 33 (a)).

17. fHEEERMEE &)

Kt

(@) MEHBHK - EBRELIBRAFESY
BAFEAR  MAFE2RERT
Bz EANBMETE

() R-ZE—AF=A=+—HZEEES
REMSBEIFLTRE - E2THIRS
ZERELNTREBMEMH ISR
BRAFEIE -

R-ZEBE-—NMF=A=+—HZEBES
REMS T HERRELEETERE
MzKkEHaTEBREMNTSEBE
A B DNEBEEEK2EREEERN
“E-NE=ZA=+—HZEEFEM
REEZATFEAR -

18. E 5 & Hft BU AR X

2015 2014
—E-F1F —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
86,120 88,637
2,637 1,981
43,678 21,534
1,117 2,701
2,849 2,868
5,546 5,749
141,947 123,470

Hiat - ZFBRERE - REBLBEER—Ra
BRA]RR(RTEE33(a))

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

=

—E-RE=A=+—ALEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not
more than 30 days for its wholesales customers. Sales
made to retail customers are made on a cash basis.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

Age AR

0 to 30 days 02 30H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 HM k

About 95% (2014: 93%) of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired are recovered within
one month after the end of the reporting period. No
provision has been made for trade receivables for both
years.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$4,447,000 (2014: HK$5,990,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 40 days (2014: 56 days).

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

18. EZ R EMEWIRR (&)

Zli‘iléﬁﬁﬁt?“g}f' iﬁTE‘ﬂSO =
Z—RIEEHBR - %}5%%7]%
HE#ET - LATJ%%?%FEHKHE,
BRI ER B RO

2015 2014
—E-I1F —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FRET
81,673 82,647
3,652 2,988

5 764

790 2,238
86,120 88,637

REBRRRELE S EBERTF K
#795% (ZZF—PUF : 93%) KN 2 W Hf
Ke—EARWE - F1EFEHER
B SRR E L B4 -

AEBE R EHRERERE
4 {H4,447,0008 T(ZF — M F -
5,990,000 7T ) 2 FEWBR K - ZE5IE
WEFREFRBEBBHEREE DR
TELREEERE -  AEENELZ
SEMBITBEMERR - ZFRUER
RZFEHERRABIOB(ZE—MF -
56 H) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

18.

19.

HE-F-BE=A=1—HLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61Z290H
Over 90 days 90 HIA E

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over
365 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 365 days are
generally not recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at variable interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.20% (2014: 0.01% to
1.10%) per annum.

18.

19.

EZREMEBWIERRE)

EEMERBEZE S EYRRZ &
53

2015 2014
—E-F1F —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,652 2,988

5 764

790 2,238
4,447 5,990

74 g5 80 46 90 (60 5 6B 38 365 1 2 e
YRR PR 2 B - R ABEESR
BT EIAR 1A 365 B 2 MR R —
AT E -

AEBYESAEERBRETER -
EERRIBRZEAXRSGETFRE
E o

RITEHFRRRE

RITHRBEACEEASEMERS
MIREIE B A =@ A sk A T I i)F
BEFENT0.01%ZE1.20% (==
—PME :0.01%E1.10%)5H B 2 52
HASRITIZ 3K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. 85 R HFE R
2015 2014
—FE-HF —T—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables B I REMNER 97,075 88,398
Payroll and welfare payables et T & RiE A 7,395 7,866
Commission payables ERRe 2,647 8,492
Advances from customers HFEIEMNR 20,293 13,597
Renovation work payables JE 1 B0 T2 AR K 2,199 2,625
VAT and other taxes payables FERTIGE R K B A F IR 12,045 95921
Advertising fee payables ERNEEE 2,568 2,259
Interest payables JEAH A2 695 1,027
Property rental fee payables ERME*EESER 493 2,057
Other payables H b fETBRR 7,293 8,929
152,703 145,171
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables LT AEZRNERANZFRPRIZE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the ERHZ5 2RO -

reporting period:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Age AR iR
0 to 60 days 0£60H 87,890 79,691
61 to 90 days 61290 H 645 972
Over 90 days 90 B E 8,540 7,735

97,075 88,398

110 R B K175 E B R 2D 7 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

21. BANK LOANS 21. RITER

The bank loans are repayable SRITERBERAT B
as follows (based on the EE(REERWZ

scheduled repayment dates set  FT&E(ZFEFERA) :
out in the loan agreements):

Within one year —FA

More than one year but not —FRERFEAN
exceeding two years

More than two years but not WERBRBRFA
exceeding five years

More than five years hF&

Comprising: BIE

Amount due within one year R—FERE 82 8
shown under current liabilities (G BEREAEE)

Amount that are not repayable BER2FRPRLT
within one year from the end —FREEEBRSE
of the reporting period but ERERIERZRIA
containing a repayment on B BREBEE)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities)

Total amount shown under Y =YrEIN=Y v
current liabilities TRIAAEFR

Amount shown under IAERBEES
non-current liabilities B

Analysed as: Paki =T
Secured BHEA
Unsecured AR

At 31st March, 2015, the Group pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$95,968,000 (2014: HK$98,282,000) to
banks to secure bank loan facilities granted to the
Group.

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

206,710 263,257
95,754 119,000
29,383 99,500

5,667 9,667

337,514 491,424

206,710 263,257
21,667 25,667

228,377 288,924

109,137 202,500

337,514 491,424
95,111 29,667

242,403 461,757

337,514 491,424

MN_B-—RE=A=+—H0 '  A&£H
B AR 17 K # 48 BR T {8 /5 95,968,000
B (ZZF — P4 : 98,282,000 7T )
ZETHELHMRIETF  LMEALE
EERBITERRE 2K -

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
HBE—_F—AaF=H=1+—HIFE

21. BANK LOANS (Continued) 21. |BITER#E)
All bank loans carrying interest at variable rates, FIBERITERSRIBFNEGTE - B
comprising: .
Effective interest rate
per annum
BERFER=E
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—MF
Loans carrying interest at: BERIRA TR R ¢
— Hong Kong Interbank Offered — HFERITRIZERE 2.19% 2.17%
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.80% (BB RITAZER
per annum B 1) IFEF2%E1.80%
— HIBOR plus 1.25% per annum — &8 HRITRIZERE M 2.29% 2.06%
FHE1.25%
— the People’s Bank of China — FERARRITEESF 5.60% 5.60%
benchmark interest rate per F=
annum
— HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum  — EFEITRIZEHRE N 2.74% 2.72%
FFE2.5%
— Bank’s cost of funding plus — RITELE AN 2.54% —

1.75% per annum FHE1.75%

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn short-term borrowing facilities:

Variable rates Y
Expiring within one year R—FE RN EHA

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REBBMR - AEEH AT RERE
HEERE

2015 2014
LI T s
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
909,637 943,107




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EAEHIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax INTRAEVBER CELERIBER
balances for financial reporting purposes: ST -
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EEHIEE E 306 807
Deferred tax liabilities BEIBAEE (1,755) (1,857)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and INTARAEERNFFEACHERZ
assets recognised and movements thereon during the FTEREEHNBERREEARAE
current and prior years: g :
Undistributable
profits of
associates and
joint ventures Others Total
BERNAR
REQFARZ
R T Hity )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1st April, 2013 RZE—=FWH—H 1,976 (1,387) 589
Exchange adjustment & 30 % = (11) (11)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RER (GEA) kR (119) 591 472
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-MFE=A=+—H 1,857 (807) 1,050
Exchange adjustment B H B - 1 1
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RER (GEA) kR (102) 500 398
At 31st March, 2015 RZE—RAF=A=1—H 1,755 (306) 1,449
Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax assets for accrued rental Wit - HEEBEEAEERAI 2EEHIES
expenses. o

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31st March, 2015, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$136,596,000 (2014: HK$90,643,000)
available to set off against future assessable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit stream. Included in unutilised tax losses
at 31st March, 2015 are losses of HK$85,654,000
(2014: HK$70,792,000) that will expire in the period
from 2016 to 2020 (2014: 2015 to 2019). Other losses
of the Group at 31st March, 2014 and 2015 may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$79,264,000 (2014: HK$109,720,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

EEBE (%)

R-ZE—RF=A=+—H £5£E
B R ) F B 7% B3 18 136,596,000 7%
7T(=—Z — M4 : 90,643,000/ 7T )
A SR R ER TS F o AR
BE T8 ORI R 2 g F 2ROR - B3 M B AR
EXRPAMBEERRECHEE
E-R_ZE—RF=ZA=+—A82
RBANBEERESNR-_Z—X
FEZ_FTF(ZE—HF: =ZF
—hAFE_T-NF)HEERZE
8 #785,654,0008 7L( = F — Y4 -
70,792,000 L) c AE B R =T
—NER-_ZE—HF=ZA=+—HZ
H B &R A -

BETREE a-2TN\EF—H—
B - REKHERARMEIRE BATR
B A 2 B S A S FEEF - AR A
S B EEH B L BB AR R R
FIFEAE E R =58 79,264,000/8 7T(—
T — P04 : 109,720,000 7T ) Z B
M AREREERETISRA] B
REERE - MW BN AV BRERLE
= REfE R IRERTE 2 B4 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE _F—aF=HA=1—HIFFE

23.

24.

SHARE CAPITAL 23. B
Number
of shares Amount
RAEER -}
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each #iXMEEO0.108 T2
Authorised: JARE -
At 1st April, 2013, R-_TE—=FMAH—
31st March, 2014 and H - ZF—MF=H
31st March, 2015 =+—HBK
—E-HF=H
=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE
At 1st April, 2013, R-ZTE—=FA—
31st March, 2014 and H - ZZE—HmF=H
31st March, 2015 =+—H
NZFE—RHF=H
=+—H 570,610,224 57,061

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

NHEBEREZESKRMHAER A A (‘Li Loong”) were an
associate of the Group. In May 2013, the Group
acquired 200,000 issued shares of Li Loong from an
independent third party not connected with the Group
for a cash consideration of NT$2,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$527,000) and subscribed 3,000,000 new shares
of Li Loong for a cash consideration of NT$90,000,000
(equivalent to HK$23,715,000). The Group’s equity
interest in Li Loong was increased from 40% to
90% and accordingly Li Loong became a subsidiary
of the Company. Li Loong is principally engaged in
watch trading. Li Loong was acquired to continue the
expansion of the Group’s watch trading business.

24, W ig— BB A 7]

EERESRHAERAE( HE])
AREEHRLE R - R_T—=FFH
A AEERENEETEEE B
3% = 7 W BE 200,000 i% 1 BEE 1T
B ReRE A& 2,000,000
Jo (¥ & © 527,000/ 7T ) © I REE
3,000,000 hEF R MH - HE R
8 A& 1 & # 90,000,000 7T (#8 & »
23,715,000/87L) - REBR HREZ
A% #E FR 40% 38 h1 = 90% -+ 1 A 1tk
ERAAEBZHBRAR - hEEXTE
NEERES  WENEITEERERE
REBZERESHER -

—E — F F F£ 3, Annual Report 2015

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE-F-AF=A=+—HILFE

24. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)  24. Wi — BB 2 8 (£)

Amount
recognised at
the date of
acquisition
RUEE B
BRAZLHE
HK$’000
FET
Net identifiable assets of the subsidiary FT BN B AR 2 Rl BRI & E
acquired: FE
Other receivables H b FE AR R 2,420
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 13
Amount acquired before subscription of REERBIHROBIAAKE
new shares by the Group e} 2,433
Subscription of new shares by the Group AEERBEBHRG 23,715
Amount acquired after subscription of RNEBE RGN & FTUE
new shares by the Group x| 26,148
HK$’000
FBEIT
Total consideration BRE 24,242
Acquisition-date fair value of previously SRFAEERPARER 2
held interest NSO 973
Add: Non-controlling interests o0 IEERR R R 2,615
Less: Net assets acquired B TN EEFE (26,148)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEA ZHE 1,682
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary: UYWEHB AT ZIREHRAFE :
Total consideration BRE (24,242)
Consideration unpaid and included in RAENREREFTAHME
other payables RTERIK 527
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiERe kERREEHE 23,728
13

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

BB M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

ﬁz

24,

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Li Loong because
the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth
and future market development. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

The other receivables acquired amounting to
HK$2,420,000 represented the gross contractual
amount and approximate to the fair value. The
best estimate at the date of acquisition was that all
receivables will be collected.

The carrying amounts of assets of Li Loong at the
acquisition date approximate to their fair values.
No gain or loss is recognised as a result of the
remeasurement of previously held interest.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31st March,
2014 was loss of HK$2,199,000 attributable to Li
Loong. Revenue for the year included HK$26,981,000
which was attributable to Li Loong.

Had the acquisition of Li Loong been completed on 1st
April, 2013, total group revenue for the year ended 31st
March, 2014 would have been HK$3,476,513,000, and
profit for that year would have been HK$20,427,000.
The pro forma information was for illustrative purposes
only and was not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st April, 2013, nor was it intended to be
a projection of future results.

24, WiE—EHEB AR (%)

MR A A B IR IR (B - Bk
BOBRELERE - It BEHX
MZREERLBESREHHR
ek WARRAKRTIHEEZF)
o WEFZYEAEESFER -
EAEZENGWIIFAEOHMANERLE
B2 HERZER o

Fir s B EL th & U BR 3K & 2,420,000 78
T BBEAHNeE WEATEMR
Ao RWHEH HEMBTAMEEYK
AR SR T AR o

RBEER » NEEECHRHEERER
FEEE UERNLHFA R E
HEt EMEREE °

HE_ZT—NF=A=+—HILHFE
2 A B E ) BE E 1 518 2,199,000
B AFEEZRABENIREEY
26,981,000 7T ©

fist U B8 D BB _imﬁfa
T AR lfééjz —mFE=A
_+—E¢¢F£zuﬂz)\ﬁ@aﬁﬂﬂ%
3,476,513,0008 7T * MAFE Z &
18 520,427,000 7T ° B E &R
EBHHABAZ YT —EAMBER
—ET-ZHFNA—HBHEK AEEE
BREERER  Wa REEEE IR
2 MESEARKREETEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

BE—

—AF=A=+—HIFFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(A)

RAERTHE

2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3rd
November, 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date on 3rd November, 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company,
the trustee of the eligible persons or a company
beneficially owned by the eligible persons. The
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. No eligible persons shall be granted an
option in any 12-month period for such number
of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the last day of
such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The exercisable period is determined by
the directors of the Company, which shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant,
and may include a minimum period for which the
options must be held before it can be exercised.
The exercise price per share payable on the
exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

25. RGO RERZHE

(A)

xR 5

—ER=-FRERES

REARANR-_ZZT=F+—A8
ZRBITZEREIAS LASB
ZEBBRER 0 NRRIRABER
BerEl( —ET=FEREs
2  —TT=_FBEREEH
KB _—_ZTZT=F+—HA=H

EEF ARt o

RIBF-_SZT=-FHEKRETE - B
AR TAEEXARBFAE
- AN TEJZEA’D\ETZW%@EJ
Zﬁ%ﬂ%% E8 - EMH-

- HEESEAA Aéﬂ/\
j:ZEE%AjZ/\ﬁjﬂ)\ia 5k

B2rr] s —EE=FERER
25 Eﬂ&%l)}?ﬁa BEFAS REH
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EBEMEEEHER - REBX
Pregs EmARIT EmRALD -
RIFCESARRIRRALE - B
ARER+—EAREAR > &8F
BALTTNEERT B MDA
(E%’%ﬁ&ﬂﬂ??‘ﬁ) SRR AR

RERZ T EARAE &K —
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TEHHARREEFEE @ ED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(A) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (A)

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

On 6th April, 2011, 32,300,000 share options were
granted and on 29th August, 2011, 23,000,000
share options were granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. The options may be exercised
by the grantees at any time during the option
period up to the termination of employment. All
share options vested immediately at the date of
grant. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on these dates are HK$44,855,000
and HK$48,698,000, respectively. The closing
prices immediately before the date of grant were
HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively.

Details of specific categories of options are as

follows:

Date of grant

REAH

6th April, 2011
—Z——FA/NH

29th August, 2011
—2——F/\A=thE

Number of
share
options
granted

EREBERE

2H
32,300,000

(note a)

(Hfita)

23,000,000

Exercisable period

A{TEHE

6th April, 2011 to
5th April, 2021
“T——FWARBE
—E--FWAARA

29th August, 2011 to
28th August, 2021

“T——FN\AZTNHE
—E_—F)/\AZ+/\H

25. LR AERZ2NRRZ (&)

—ER-FRREE(E)

) BHREERHEEHAR
EEEREBTE AR
BXRIMZEBRFHWT

go

R ——FW1 A/ NB"
32,300,000 17 & B #E & 3% -
mR=—F=——F N \A=1+ANA8 "
23,000,000 EERREREBE=-F
ToFHERERTEERE - A%
AT A B R B I BE R 1T (R B AR
- BEERIEERAL  -FTERE
AEREN RS BEN B o NiX
TRHERLEcEREZGBEA
1B 5 Bll & 44,855,000 T &
48,698,000/ 7T - EE K HE
Heal 2 WmED R A3.958 T
K 4.3877C °

FrE BRI ZFBIT ¢

Original Adjusted
exercise exercise
price per price per

share share

RESR RARBR

i@ TEE

HK$4.13 HK$3.44

41387 3.4477T
(note i)
(Hizzi)

HK$4.80 N/A

4,808 7T NEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR HRRME
For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE—F—AF=HA=+—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(A) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose movements of the
Company’s share options granted under the
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors,
employees and consultants during the years
ended 31st March, 2014 and 2015:

Share options granted on 6th April, 2011

(A)

25. LR RER 2ARRZ (&)

—ER-FRBRESE(E)

TREBRBE_ZT-—HFR_
E-RF=A=+—HILFERX
B EERERFAZREC
T =FREREEER L 2
NEIBREES

R-FB——FHANARLEZIE
B

Number of
shares

under option
outstanding at
1st April, 2013,
31st March,
2014 and

31st March,
2015
R-B—=F
mA—A -~
—E-0F
=BA=+-—H
R-—Z-H%F
=A=+-—H
RATHE
BRESRZ

Categories of participants SHEEER
Directors of the Company KABEE
Other employees HifEE
Consultants (Note i) BARI(KTati)
Total KBET

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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14,520,000
14,400,000
2,640,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B

For the year ended 31st March, 2015
B2 —_E—hF=A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(A) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted on 29th August, 2011

Categories of participants SHEEER
Other employees HEmES
Consultants (Note ii) BEM (KTazii)
Notes:

(i) The number of shares under the outstanding options and
the exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus
issue of shares in July 2011 on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held.

(i) The share options were granted to consultants for
services rendered in exploring investment opportunities
for the Group.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2nd
November, 2013. The options could be exercised
by the participants at any time during the option
period and notwithstanding that the 2003 Share
Option Scheme had expired.

25. IR BRERZNRRZ (£)

(A)

—ER-FRREE(E)

REFE——FN A=+ NHEH
ZHERE

Number

of shares
under option
outstanding at
1st April, 2013,
31st March,
2014

and

31st March,
2015
R-E—=F
mA—A -~
—E-mE
=A=+—H
R-_Z—FHF
=A=+—H
RITEZ
BRREFTY R
2R EE

18,000,000
5,000,000

23,000,000

HiEE -

() KROEBERBEBSRZBEOHE R
ﬁﬁ@-‘i&ﬁé:%**itﬂ}ﬁ
A TR E AR R — RO R
Pz BAER XA AR AE T -

(i) BREDLDETER EFRERAN
SEHERERERSMIERRTEZ
El%

—ET = FEREFER-Z
—=F+—AZHEm - BRE
A FB 2 B 3 70 B AR 4 HA R A (T B
FRTLATE  MAwm_TEE=F
BRETEIRER
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(B) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13th August, 2013, a new share option scheme
was adopted with effect on 3rd November, 2013
(the “2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) any
customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons to provide
incentive to them to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. The total number of
shares available for issue under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme as at the date of this report is
57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall be
granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

25. IR BERZNRKRS (&)

(B)

—E-C=FEREFE

BEAATNR-ZZE—=FN\A
T=HEITZRRBAFAE LA
BrEBRBRR RZT=F
BREEERE - —EHRZE
—=F+—A=ZB4ABRZFEK
BB —=ZFERE
2 ERR -

BIE—_T—=FERES -
BIRERT R T () AR EH AR A
RERAER Z REIHZ AR Z
MEBAR(EB AR ZEM
BEE - EEHEM H(i)Xxm
ABEAREB B AR 2 M
5% EEREMzEIAEEE
(i ASE B QA
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(B) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

of the Company, which shall not be more than
10 years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in
force until 2nd November, 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its effective
date on 3rd November, 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31st March, 2015.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for
the years ended 31st March, 2014 and 2015 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

26.

27.

BE_F—hF=H=+—HIFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2015, the Group issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to associates. The aggregate amount that
could be required to be paid if the guarantees were
called upon in entirety amounted to NT$200,000,000
(equivalent to HK$49,599,000; 2014: NT$200,000,000
and equivalent to HK$50,860,000), which was fully
utilised by these associates at 31st March, 2015.
The fair value of the financial guarantee contracts at
the grant date and at 31st March, 2014 and 2015 is
not significant and in the opinion of the directors, the
default risk of associates is considered as low.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FNA

In the second to fifth years EFE_EZFRF
inclusive (BEEEMF)

Over five years HBRAF

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain its shops and office premises.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to
9 years (2014: 1 to 10 years). Some group entities
are required to pay lease charges based on a fixed
percentage of net sales.
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28.

29.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect MERE VM BBRERA
of the acquisition of property, EHEMNEE T
plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements

REZEARRAX

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the other is
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

WiE % ~ 2R &

28. EAXRIE
2015 2014
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 before 1st June, 2014)
to an individual, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$9,396,000 (2014: HK$8,873,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
in respect of the current accounting period.
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchange from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 21 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

30. EXEBERE

31.

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables B K EWER IR
(including cash and cash (BEReERERES
equivalents) HH)
Available-for-sale financial AEHESRERE
assets
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Amortised cost [RE: T BN

AEEEREEER  UHERASEB
TERBENFELE  RREBRN
EEHEER FERS KR ZEH
AEBZERRBREFFEEFTT

\\\\\\\ o

AREBZEARBERRBRERFHRE
TEENEAARENGRREE RS
RIREE B 2 RITEF)ARKRARE
REAREES(ETEBDETR
AEFEHE(BRBRFREER)) - ARA
EXBFRTEARE - FERURF
THE—8D  EFEEEAKAKH
ERERHEBRR - EREEFD
ZE#E - ARESEERERE - ¥
TR AR BTHEFXELRRE
B FEEREBERLRE -

EWTHE

SRITAEER
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MmF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
515,979 634,205
5,652 14,779
450,586 604,148
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale financial assets, amount due from
a joint venture, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities. The
management conducts periodical review of exposure
and requirements of various currencies, and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. The management considers that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is not
significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank balances.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits is
insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and the
People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate arising
from the Group’s bank loans.
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31.

—AFEZA=1—HILFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank loans
at the end of the reporting period. The analyses are
prepared assuming that the bank loans outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used for bank loans when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For bank loans, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post
tax profit for the year ended 31st March, 2015 would
decrease/increase by HK$1,688,000 (2014: post tax
profit would decrease/increase by HK$2,052,000).

For bank deposits, no sensitive analysis is performed
as the exposure to interest rates for bank deposits is
considered as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets at
the end of the reporting period exposed the Group
to equity price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In view of the amount of
available-for-sale financial assets at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that the
Group’s exposure to equity price risk is not significant.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2015
BE2 —E—hF=A=1+—HIFEZ

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. €T A#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 26.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit standings and banks
with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of counterparties and customers.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st March, 2015, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities
of HK$909,637,000 (2014: HK$943,107,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. The amounts included below for variable
interest rate bank loans are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

2015

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Financial guaranteg contracts

2014

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Financial guaranteg contracts

Note: The management made the best estimation of variable-rate
borrowings with reference to HIBOR and the People’s Bank of
China benchmark rate as at 31st March, 2014 and 2015.
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31. EMIAE(#E)
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B E L RFIF RS
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interest rate 1 month months 1 year years  cash flows amount
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31.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analyses. As at 31st March,
2015, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank loan with a repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$21,667,000 (2014: HK$25,667,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that the
bank loans will be repaid in seven years (2014: eight
years) after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$27,579,000
(2014: HK$31,962,000).
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31. EMIAE(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

2015 ZE-1f
Bank loans $ER
2014 - 1
Bank loans FER
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Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
METH

LS

2.29%

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
il 357
L3Ik

2.06%

BEREERERERE(E)

mEBELEE(E)

REEL RFIFEREBRIZ (E)

3 months Total
1103 to 1to5  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
months 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
FERRE
153fF 3EAE1E 135 SENL  HEEE KaE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
1,145 3,401 17,269 5,765 27,580 21,667
3 months Total
1tod to 1to5  More than undiscounted Carrying
months 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
FERRS
12387 OEREIE 1858 SENL HEAE i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKk$ 000 HKS 000
TAT TéT AT TAT AT TAT
1,151 3423 17472 9,916 31,962 25,667
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined.

Financial assets Fair value
SREE LYE
2014
“E-[EF
HK$'000
AT
(a) Available-for-sale financial 99 129

assets — listed
investments, equity
securities listed in
Hong Kong

@ TRHLESREE -
LmiRE - REE LT
LIRAES

(b) Available-for-sale
financial assets —
unlisted investments,
managed fund
portfolio

(b) AL ESREE —
LIRS EEES
REMA

5,553 =

Fair value
hierarchy

AYERR

Level 1

S

Level 2

¥

31. E@IT B (&)

THEEZLVE

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
fEERDR
IZHANE

Quoted bid prices in
an active market

REMHHALEAE

Quoted market prices
provided by brokers
which are financial
institutions (Note i)

FEREEHERBERNH

L REMWL)

Significant
unobservable inputs
ERTTER
BANE

N/A

iyl

N/A

il

REEMEENATEFEZEAEE

RERBR  AEEFLEREET)
ARFERE - TREH‘RARNME
EHEFEREEZATE-

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TIBREAYE
HAYEBE

N/A

N/A

iyl

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)

Financial assets Fair value
tHEE AV
2014
“E-IF
HK$'000
AL
(c) Avallable-for-sale financial - 14,650

assets — unlisted
investments, managed
fund portfolio (mainly
comprising real estate
fund)

o) I HESREE -
FLmRE  BRES
REHR(T2RARY
[:2:53)

31. e@TH(#)

REEMEENUATEFEZEAER

SREEZATEE)
Relationship of
Fair value  Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable inputs
hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value
ERTIR EXFTRE FIERRAZE
AVERE IEBAYE BANE RAYEZBRE

Level 3 Based on the fair
value of the
underlying assets
of the real estate
fund which are
mainly investment
properties whose
fair values are
derived using direct
comparison method
(key input is price
per square metre
with adjustments)

Price per square metre  The higher the price

of comparable per square metre,
properties taking the higher the fair
into account of value

location and other
individual factors
such as road
frontage, size of
properties, etc.

(Note ii)

230 RERHEECEEAE SLEMERERTS . SYARERER:
(TERREME B MEERSEMEN  ATEER
ATENRRERY R TALBME
WATEZEAZBE  ZBTHRER

SYABR(TTE
B A7) AT

B(Hiti)

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions represent the net asset values of the respective
funds, based on the quoted prices of the underlying
investments.

(if) If the price per square metre to the valuation model were 10%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of the managed fund portfolio would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$453,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2014.

Fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period:

ERTHE#E)
REEMEENATEFEZEAEE
ERMEEZAFEGE)

Wit

() (FRRLCHREEREzMZRERE
RBHAREREEECEESEEF
(& -

i)y WHEEERSFEFHIRERS K
10% @ AT H b Al & R =R FTE
BEE—_ZT—NF=A=+—HItFE
EBESREMEE ZEREEGE I,/
4> 453,000 7 7T °

REHFHRZ A FERE

2015
—E-HEF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R FE28k EIR st
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale financial At HESREE
assets
Listed equity securities ERAES 99 - - 99
Managed fund portfolio ERESKELRS - 5,553 - 5,553
99 5,553 - 5,652
2014
—E—F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H Fo2M FEIR et
HK$’00 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T FET
Available-for-sale financial AJHHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities L TIRANE S 129 — - 129
Managed fund portfolio ERESREHRE — = 14,650 14,650
129 — 14,650 14,779

— % — & F F 3§, Annual Report 2015
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of available-for-sale financial assets

31. EMIAE(#E)

THHESHMEELIRAFETE

At 1st April, 2013
Total gain recognised in asset
revaluation reserve

At 31st March, 2014

Disposal of during the year

Transfer out to Level 2 (Note i)

Total loss recognised in asset
revaluation reserve (Note ii)

Z ¥R
Managed fund
portfolio
EEES
REAE
HK$’000
FEIT
R-_E—=FPmPA—H 13,947
REEERRERRAZ
Wes 858 703
RZE—UF=HA=+—~H 14,650
RAFEEH (5,028)
BB E MM (5,553)
REESEHFEERRZ
Wes BRE (KTt i) (4,069)

At 31st March, 2015 R-E—RF=A=+—H

Notes:

During the year, part of the managed fund portfolio related
to the real estate fund was dissolved which was mainly
investment properties whose fair values were derived using
direct comparison method. The remaining available-for-sale
financial assets are mainly comprising the unlisted equity
investments which the quoted market prices are provided by
brokers which are financial institutions. The financial assets
have been transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 during the year.

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
HK$4,069,000, being loss related to managed fund portfolio
classified as available-for-sale financial assets held at the end
of the reporting period and is reported as part of the changes
of the “asset revaluation reserve”.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

RAFER  BHEFEMELZSHEBEZ
ERESREMAEG(TERREME)
ERRE ERATVEDVRBERLEEMR
HF-HTAHLESHEETRERER
EABRARE  EmSREHESKLL
ML REERE SREECRFAR
FIREREF2HK -

H b 2 W x5 B IE & %84,069,00078
70 RS ARFERRFE 2 A #
HESCREEZERESRKREHAEH
ZEE Y2RAEESHHE]E
23D e

EERR/NGE M F MR P IREHK
ARz eMEENERBEZRE
EEEAFHERS °
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. T ERB AT
RZE—RAER_ZE—WE=HA
=+—H AQFRZEEWBAA
(2EHARERAR)EBENAT

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of
which are limited liability companies, at 31st March,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of
operations share capital/registered nominal value of issued capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiary AR/ and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company activities
KEARER BR/BEnY  CRORARRA/FRREAER KRR LERTRAEE/ HRER 2L 351
2015 2014 Directly Indirectly
Z%-1f ZE-|E 2 4 %
2015 2014 2015 2014
C2-0F i C2-5F kit
% % % %
La Suisse Watch Company, ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited HK$1,000 HKS$1,000
RTRTERAR EE EER1,000%T  EERI000ET FRIEH
Qriental Watch (China) Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Watch trading and
Company Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000 investment
holding
FAEn(PR)ERRA BA EBR1,000%%  EERI000ET FREERRERR
Qrigntal Watch Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000 FRIEH
Fh&TRRAT Bk EER1000BL  EER1000ET
Qrigntal Watch (Macau) Macau Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 50 50 50 50 Watch trading
Company Limited MOP$25,000 MOP$25,000 FRIEE
FART(RF)ARAT 27 EER LRk
25,0002 7 25,000 2197
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
HK$1 HKS1 RERR
ERERAR B EER1%R R AT
Unex Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property holding
HK$2 HKS2 LS
FUERERAT EE EER2ER tRkoAR
HERRZATEESER  ThePRC Vot  Registeredand  Registered and - = 100 100 Watch trading for a
A7) (Shanghai Oriental &) paid-up capital ~ paid-up capital term of 50 years
Watch International 1$$200,000 US$200,000 commencing 3rd
Trading Co., Ltd) AMREMER  EfRE4ER January, 2001
200,000% 7 200,000%7 FREE Bo3%

~5-A=RE
0

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid
operations share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary AR/ and paid-up capital
WEADEH Bi/@eny  CRARMRRA/SMRE&EX
2014
E-RE

EREG(PE)256RAT ThePRC (Not  Registeredand  Registered and
(Oriental Watch (China) R EI(47:2) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd) US$54,000,000  US$54,000,000

AmREgER  FEfResgs
54000000€%  54,000,000%T

BlZ2(t5)858R0A%  ThePRC(Notg) Registeredand  Registered and

wEfE) paid-up capital  paid-up capital
1$$9,180,000 US$9,180,000
AmREgER  FfResER
9,180,000% 7 9,180,000%

Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

RAKRITEEBR DA Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

32. TEMBAT (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of issued capital/ Principal
registered capital held by the Company activities
KRAFHEZERRARE/ERERZ LA IERH
Directly Indlrectly
EF %
- = 100 100 Wateh trading for a
term of 30 years
commencing

14th June, 2005
FRIEE A3

BF~ATEA

R

= = 100 10

0 Watch trading and
apparel busingss

FREBRREEH

Wit ZERARRPEARIIERLE 2T
BX3Z °

FRAFIEERATIEFELSKHE
REREEZARANBAR - X
RS I E ALK B A R 2 FEE
AlgEHERBHILE

BT B R AR B A AR B P R
BERKRERERES
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. TEMEB AT (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REFRAR KAREHAEEME
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. WIHEBRZEMMHBAT o KD Z
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong, EMBRARINRES FERAELR
the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of these & o ZENB ARz T EEKE MmN
subsidiaries are summarised as follows: T
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXEK FEEKIE MEABEE
2015 2014
—E-05 ik
Watch trading Hong Kong
FREH BB 2 2
Taiwan
By 1 1
3 8
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER B 9 9
The PRC
a3 1 1
10 10
Inactive Hong Kong
EmEX BB 14 14
The PRC
il 1 1
15 15
28 28

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In April 2012, the Group entered into a
procurement agreement with Hei Tung, pursuant
to which the Group provides procurement services
to Hei Tung relating to the supply of watches and
spare parts for no consideration. The procurement
agreement is effective from 1st April, 2012. At
31st March, 2015, reimbursements receivable
from Hei Tung amounted to HK$2,637,000 (2014:
HK$1,981,000).

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the directors

of the Company. The remuneration of directors
during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 HAfE A
Post-employment benefits BB 22

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

142 R B K175 E B R 2D 7 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

33. FAEALRS

(a)

RZE——_FA  AEEHEE
REIMEEGE - Bt A%E
mERNSREHEHERLTH
it 2 IR - IREHZE

TE——FHA—HRBER-
RZE—RAF=ZA=+—8"

FEWE R 2 R 552,637,000 7
JT(ZZF — 9 4 :1,981,000%
JL) °

(b) EEEEEABE ZHMH
FTEEBREABALRDRES -
FRZEZMSWT :

2015 2014
—E—-hE —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
16,215 18,375
1,834 1,834
18,049 20,209

EEMemFHEZ e eLEEE
AFRBRETHBEIREE -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

34. AR BB AR R &R

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment S E TN
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZIRE
Available-for-sale financial AtEEeRmEE
assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE Q]
Taxation recoverable AJ 3R O 718
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS
Liabilities =L
Other payables H M &< BR K
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE
Net assets BEFE
Capital and reserves BARKRHE
Share capital R
Reserves (Note) fHE (A at)
Total equity MR
Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the

prior years are as follows:

At 1st April, 2013

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial

RZZE—=FWMA—H
AfHESREE 2 AT ESZ

assets
Profit for the year F W A
Dividend paid BRI E

At 31st March, 2014

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial

RZE—MFE=A=+—H
AP ESMEEZ A TFEES

assets
Profit for the year F A5 )
Dividend paid ERRE

At 31st March, 2015

R-—ZE—ARF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—®—-hf —TmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
1,084 1,355
122,626 122,626
3,295 2,885
844,611 825,403
- 1,799

568 2,193
972,184 956,261
1,491 3,239
86,676 83,943
88,167 87,182
884,017 869,079
57,061 57,061
826,956 812,018
884,017 869,079

Bt

ARRRFRERANFERBEFEZEEHMT ¢

—Z — F F F 3, Annual Report 2015

HK$'000
TET

817,332
825

26,672
(32,811)

812,018

410
18,807
(4,279)

826,956
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

RESULTS

Turnover

Profit before
taxation

Income tax
expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling

interests

Profit for the year

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable
to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling
interests

PSR X

F Rt A

AN AR :
ZAN/NGIE7 2SN

RS

= PR

BEEREE

BEMRE
BEAR

ZAN/NIE7 2SN
FEI5

FEPERRE AR

Year ended 31st March,
BE=A=+t—HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014

2% —Z%——-F —T—=F —_ZT—NOF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
3,917,764 3,935,963 3,732,925 3,476,513 3,109,031
272,189 216,937 185,963 29,964 9,650
(52,760) (52,829) (23,366) (9,516) (5,317)
219,429 164,108 162,597 20,448 4,333
219,429 164,108 162,597 20,605 4,508
— — — (157) (175)
219,429 164,108 162,597 20,448 4,333

At 31st March,
R=R=+—H

2011 2012 2013 2014

—T——F _T—_F _T-—=F _THF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000

FET FET FET FET
2,370,974 2,803,939 3,082,092 2,859,107 2,706,073
(506,299)  (711,711)  (854,142)  (641,092) (494,282)
1,864,675 2,092,228 2,227,950 2,218,015 2,211,791
1,864,675 2,092,228 2,227,950 2,216,462 2,210,452
— — — 1,553 1,339
1,864,675 2,092,228 2,227,950 2,218,015 2,211,791

RAEKITEBEFR LD F Oriental Watch Holdings Limited






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告及管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 350
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 350
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 300
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks true
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo true
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (U.S. Web Coated \(SWOP\) v2)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /HighResolution
      >>
      /FormElements true
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 8.503940
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing false
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


